
            
 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

                           BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 April 6, 2023 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 
OPEN SESSION: 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for March 16, 2023 

B. Approve the Warrant List for April 6, 2023 

C. Approve Hasa Inc. Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite 

D. Approve Kemira Water Solutions Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Ferric Chloride 

E. Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite 

F. Approve Bid Award Reclamation Pastureland Irrigation Operations and Maintenance Services  

G. Approve Murray attending WEF Residuals and Biosolids Conference  May 16-19, North Carolina 

H. Approve Yezman attending CASA RWG Water Quality and Biosolids virtual meeting April 13, 2023 

 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through H. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through H 

 

 

 

4:30 PM 

4:35 PM 

Estimated 
Time 
 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


April 6, 2023 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. General Manager Evaluation Process - Written 

 

4. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,  

Other Reports  
 

2. FORD 
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee, 

 2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,  
Other Reports 
 

3. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee, 

2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

4. ROBARDS 
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE, 

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee Other Reports 
 

5. YEZMAN 
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE, 

                          Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports 

5. BOARD REQUESTS: 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

6. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: APRIL 20 AND MAY 4, 2023 

 

 

 

5:25 PM 

 
 
 
 

4:40 PM 

 

5:30 PM 

 
 

5:35  PM 

 
 

5:00  PM 

 

2



April 6, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before April 3, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held  on April 6, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: March 31, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 

Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

4/6/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Scans 2023\04062023\2C Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors   

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 6, 2023 

Re: Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite (12.5% 
Concentration) during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Hasa Inc. Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite (12.5% 
Concentration) during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

BACKGROUND 
As a member agency of The Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish sodium hypochlorite for the twelve-month 
period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 from the BACC administrating agency, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD). Sodium Hypochlorite is used for disinfection to remain in compliance with the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES and recycled water permit requirements.  
 
In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for sodium hypochlorite by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. DSRSD 
received bids from three vendors, Univar USA Inc., Olin Corporation and Hasa, Inc. The BACC bid review 
document revealed that Hasa, Inc was the lowest responsive bid for the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region. Both 
Olin Chlor Corp. and Univar USA Inc. bids were responsive but not the lowest priced for the Marin-
Sonoma-Napa region. 
 
BACC 2023 
Bid Tabulation 
 
 Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Hasa, Inc. $2.88 

Olin Chlor Corp. $2.99 

Univar USA Inc. $3.25 

 
 
BACC 2022  
Bid Tabulation 
 
 Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $1.464 

Olin Chlor Corp. $1.589 

Hasa, Inc. $5.000 

Item Number_________2C_____ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

 

12

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Scans 2023\04062023\2C Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 13-2023 for Supply and 
Delivery of 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite addressed to Hasa, Inc. was received from DSRSD on March 16, 
2023. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies in the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region to contact Hasa, Inc  to 
arrange for purchasing sodium hypochlorite (12.5%) for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is currently undertaking or planning for. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the June 3, 2022 regular meeting, the Board approved a 12-month contract to Univar Solutions to 
furnish liquid sodium bisulfite (25% concentration) & liquid sodium hypochlorite (12.5% Concentration) 
beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The draft FY2023/2024 budgeted amount for sodium hypochlorite is $ 514,931. 
 
 
 
 

13



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\04062023\ASR for FY 23-24 Contract Award for Ferric Chloride.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors   

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 6, 2023 

Re: Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Ferric 
Chloride during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Action______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Ferric Chloride during the 
twelve-month period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

BACKGROUND 
As a member agency of The Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish Ferric Chloride for the twelve-month period 
of July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024, from the BACC administrating agency, Dublin San Ramon Services 
District (DSRSD). Ferric Chloride has two uses at the treatment plant: chemically enhanced primary 
treatment (CEPT) and for the reduction of sulfides in the anaerobic digestion process.  
 
CEPT as a treatment strategy during high flows and improves solids capture in the primary clarifiers. This 
improves the performance of all downstream processes and in turn increases the plant’s ability to remain 
in compliance with the Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES permit requirements. A small amount of ferric 
chloride is also injected into the solids pumped to the anaerobic digesters all year long. The resulting 
chemical reaction with sulfide ion in the sludge reduces the formation of hydrogen sulfide gas which would 
have to be removed by the filtration system in the biogas conditioning skid. Without ferric chloride addition, 
the system’s hydrogen sulfide filtration media would need to be changed with greater frequency. 
Maintaining low sulfide levels in flared digester gas is also a BAAQMD permit requirement. 
 
In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for sodium hypochlorite by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. Review of the 
DSRSD documents revealed that Kemira Water Solutions, Inc.. was the lowest responsive bidder for the 
Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. Pencco, Inc.’s bid was found to be responsive but not the lowest priced for 
the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. 
 
BACC 2023 
Bid Tabulation 
 
Bidder        Unit Price Per Dry Ton 

Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. $1498.00 

Pencco, Inc. $1700.00 

 
 

Item Number________2D______ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

 

14

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\04062023\ASR for FY 23-24 Contract Award for Ferric Chloride.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
BACC 2022 
Bid Tabulation 
 
Bidder        Unit Price Per Dry Ton 

Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. $1229.00 

Pencco, Inc. $1300.00 

Thatcher Company of California, Inc. $1500.00 

 
A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 6-2023 for Supply and 
Delivery of Ferric Chloride addressed to Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. was received from DSRSD on March 
16, 2023. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies in the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region to contact Kemira 
Water Solutions, Inc. to arrange for purchasing Ferric Chloride for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 
2024.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is in the process of undertaking. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the April 21, 2022, meeting, the board approved a contract with Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. to furnish 
liquid ferric chloride for the twelve-month period from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
The draft FY2023/2024 budgeted amount for Miscellaneous Chemicals is $66,500 with $20,000 
apportioned from this budget item to cover the costs of estimated annual Ferric Chloride usage.   
 
 
 
 

15



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\04062023\ASR for FY 23-24 Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors   

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 6, 2023 

Re: Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite (25% 
Concentration) during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite (25% Concentration) 
during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024. 

BACKGROUND 
As a member agency of The Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish sodium bisulfite for the twelve-month 
period of July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024 from the BACC administrating agency, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD). Sodium bisulfite is used for de-chlorination of plant effluent disinfected with 
sodium hypochlorite to remain in compliance with the Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES permit 
requirements. 
 
In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for sodium hypochlorite by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. The DSRSD 
received bids from only one vendor, Univar USA Inc.. The BACC bid review document revealed that Univar 
USA Inc. was the lowest responsive bid. 
 
BACC 2023 
Bid Tabulation 
 
Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $1.845 

 
 
BACC 2022 
Bid Tabulation 
 
 Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $1.475 

 
 
 
 

Item Number________2E______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

16

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\04062023\ASR for FY 23-24 Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite.docx Page 2 of 2 

A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 11-2023 for Supply and 
Delivery of 25% Sodium Bisulfite addressed to Univar USA Inc. was received from the Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD) on March 16, 2023. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies in the 
Marin/Sonoma/Napa region to contact Univar USA Inc. to arrange for purchasing sodium bisulfite (25%) for 
period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is in the process of undertaking. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the June 3, 2022 regular meeting, the Board approved a 12-month contract to Univar Solutions to 
furnish liquid sodium bisulfite (25% concentration) & liquid sodium hypochlorite (12.5% Concentration) 
beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The draft FY2023/2024 budgeted amount for sodium bisulfite is $181,012 
 
 
 
 

17



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\04062023\ASR for Pasture Irrigation O&M 2023-24.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors  

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 6, 2023 

Re: Bid Award - Reclamation Pastureland Irrigation Operations and Maintenance 
Services 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to award a contract to Custom Tractor Services Inc. (CTS) to provide Reclamation Pastureland 
Irrigation Operations and Maintenance with inclusionary language that obligates CTS to sharing 30% hay 
crop gross profit proceeds with the District. 

BACKGROUND 
Plant effluent that is discharged to the reclamation storage ponds when needed throughout the year must 
be land applied in the irrigation pastures as a means of disposal. This reduces the storage burden and is 
anticipated to provide the capacity to successfully meet the full term of the treatment plant creek discharge 
prohibition period, June through October. The District utilizes professional services to provide pasture 
preparation, operate and maintain the irrigation equipment, and perform limited levee road and ditch 
maintenance during the reclamation season. In previous years, the District’s need for annual biosolids 
removal and surface injection work was included as a second bid item but, beginning in the 2023-24 fiscal 
year, that need will be accomplished as a component of a larger effort to support the District’s beneficial 
biosolids project, which will be competitively bid under a separate scope of work and contract. 
 
A single bid from Custom Tractor Services Inc. was received during the invitation for bids period. The Bid 
was officially opened and read on March 17, 2023, with the following result recorded: 
 
Custom Tractor Services Inc.  
 
Item 1: Reclamation area pasture irrigation Operations and Maintenance.     $121,400 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The Board awarded a contract to Custom Tractor Services Inc in the amount of $221,575 for Biosolids 
Surface Injection and Reclamation Pastureland Irrigation Operations and Maintenance Services with a 
30% of gross profit share to the District from the sale of hay crops grown on District lands at the May 5, 
2022 meeting.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
The activities described above comply with the District’s NPDES permit.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$121,400 

Item Number_______2F_______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

18

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

 
 

 

4/6/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

31



P . O .  B O X  1 3 5 0    |     C A R M E L  V A L L E Y ,  C A  9 3 9 2 4    |     8 4 4 - 5 8 7 - 7 3 0 0    |     W W W . R G S . C A . G O V  

March 29, 2023     Via email to cpaxton@lgvsd.org 

Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District 
101 Lucas Valley Road #300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

RE: General Manager Performance Evaluation Support 

Dear Mr. Paxton: 

Thank you for giving Regional Government Services (RGS) the opportunity to provide this 
proposal to assist the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District (LGVSD) Board of Directors with 
the development of the General Manager’s performance evaluation. RGS is uniquely qualified to 
provide these services based on our specific and substantial expertise and experience working with 
public agencies throughout California and the flexible and scalable services provided by our team.  
Regional Government Services is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) established in 2001 to serve the 
needs of cities, counties, special districts and other governmental entities throughout California.  
We provide a ready source of project and consulting services to meet the needs of our partner 
agencies in a broad range of administrative and support service areas.  RGS has a proven track 
record working with local government agencies to successfully deliver effective HR management 
systems and administration in organizations. 

I have attached a proposal describing the proposed General Manager Performance Evaluation 
services and current hourly rates.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please feel 
free to contact me at (650) 587-7303 or via e-mail at bbennett@rgs.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Bobbi Bennett 
Human Resources Services Director 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

Agenda Item 3.2

32



 

 
PAGE 2 OF 5 GENER                                             GENERAL MANAGER EVALUATION PROPOSAL │ LGVSD 

 

ABOUT REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

Regional Government Services (RGS) is a joint-powers authority (JPA) established in 2001 to 
provide organizational services to other California public agencies. We have over 170 professional 
Advisors throughout California actively serving more than 150 cities, special districts, counties, 
other JPAs and special consortiums of government agencies. RGS provides consulting services in 
the areas of human resources and financial management, organizational development, community 
engagement, strategic planning, and more specifically to public agencies. 
 
RGS is a virtual government agency, and has developed a unique network of geographically 
distributed Advisors who work through various remote access technologies to deliver services to 
partner agencies, reducing overhead and expanding our ability to provide high-quality services 
throughout the state. Advisors can be onsite as needed. RGS Advisors form ad hoc teams to provide 
services and project delivery, and do not operate in a traditional organizational hierarchy. 
Our Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, Richard Averett, has worked with the Board 
of Directors since the JPA’s inception to implement the Authority’s strategic plan.  Sophia 
Selivanoff, Deputy Executive Director, joined RGS in 2009, and Bobbi Bennett, Human Resources 
Services Director, joined RGS in 2015 and manages all RGS human resources services provided 
to partner agencies, develops new business and partner relationships, and supervises all human 
resources team members throughout RGS. 
 
At RGS, we believe in striving to be a partner to the agencies we serve, not simply a consultant or 
contractor.  We believe in relationships that are lasting and mutually respectful and beneficial.  In 
order to establish a mutually respectful relationship as well as a productive one, RGS has adopted 
the following values and business methods. 
 
Our Values 
• Expert Services: RGS serves exclusively public sector agencies with its team of public sector 

experts. 
 

• Innovation: RGS encourages and develops innovative and sustainable services to help each 
agency meet its challenges through new modes of service provision. 

 
• Customer Driven: RGS customizes solutions to achieve the right level and right kind of 

service at the right time for each agency’s unique organizational needs. 
 
• Perseverance: Sometimes the best solutions are not immediately apparent.  RGS listens, 

works with you, and sticks with it until a good fit with your needs is found. 
 

• Open Source Sharing: RGS tracks emerging best practices and shares them, our clients and 
our advisors learn openly from each other’s hard-won experience. 

 
• Commitment: Government agencies are the public’s sole provider for many services, public 

trust is earned and must be used wisely.  Each agency should and will know how RGS sets its 
rates.  RGS’ pledge to you is that we will act with honesty, openness, and full transparency. 

33



 

 
PAGE 3 OF 5 GENER                                             GENERAL MANAGER EVALUATION PROPOSAL │ LGVSD 

 

GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION SERVICES 
The following typical approach and work plan is anticipated to facilitate the Board’s process of 
developing an effective performance evaluation for the General Manager that will ensure valuable 
feedback and establish goals that support the Board’s short- and long-term strategic goals.  The 
RGS Advisor will carry out this work plan by working with the Board appointed General Manager 
Evaluation ad-hoc Committee (Committee) utilizing video conference calls, phone meetings, and 
e-mails. 
 
1. Kick-off meeting with Committee 

§ Identify key strategic issues for the Board. 
§ Identify and clarify Committee’s process for reporting to the Board. Communication 

channels.  
§ Discuss any desired changes to the current General Manager performance. evaluation 

form. 
§ Determine if a compensation study is needed. 
§ Identify date to issue final performance evaluation. 
§ Discuss Committee’s and consultant’s role and responsibilities. 

 
2. Evaluation process timeline 

A timeline with key benchmarks, target dates, and responsible party will be developed for the 
Committee’s consideration. With Committee approval, the proposed timeline will be provided 
to the Board of Directors for approval. 
 

3. Performance Evaluation  
§ The performance evaluation form and directions on how to complete the form will be 

provided to the Board of Directors.  
§ Compile the individual Board members’ draft evaluations into one evaluation. Once 

approved by the Committee, the draft compiled performance evaluation will be provided 
to the Board President for distribution to Board members. The draft compiled performance 
evaluation will be sent under attorney/client privilege since it contains confidential 
personnel matter. 

§ Closed session will be held for the Board to discuss the draft compiled performance 
evaluation. If a compensation study has been conducted, the information will also be 
provided. 

§ The final compiled performance evaluation will be issued by the Board in closed session. 
 
 
PROJECT TEAM APPROACH AND QUALIFICATIONS 
Bobbi Bennett, Human Resources Services Director, will serve as LGVSD point of contract.  
Richard Blut, Senior Advisor, will partner with Bobbi as back-up. Richard’s time will not be 
charged to LGVSD unless he is providing direct support to LGVSD. 
 
 
 

34



 

 
PAGE 4 OF 5 GENER                                             GENERAL MANAGER EVALUATION PROPOSAL │ LGVSD 

 

Bobbi Bennett, Human Resources Services Director 
The ability to create and effect functional and strategic level change within an organization has 
been Bobbi Bennett’s passion for more than 20 years. During her career in Human Resources 
within City and County governments, she has overseen centralized full-service Human Resources 
departments that addressed executive level performance evaluations and compensation, 
recruitments, classification and compensation, benefits, worker’s compensation, performance 
management, discipline, employee relations, labor relations, labor negotiations, and training. Since 
joining RGS, she has partnered with several special districts and municipalities in California.  
Bobbi’s key skill is assisting all levels of an organization address complex matters to facilitate 
effective resolutions.  Additionally, Bobbi is recognized for her ability to work with governing 
bodies to facilitate executive level performance and compensation issues. 
 
Bobbi joined RGS in 2015. She has been a SHRM certified professional in Human Resources 
Management (PHR) since 1997, is an IPMA Professional program trainer, and is a certified 
mediator. Additionally, Bobbi holds a Master’s degree in Counseling Psychology. 
 
Richard Blut, Senior Advisor 
Richard Blut joined RGS in 2022 as a Senior Advisor for Human Resources Services. Richard 
spearheads the NEOGOV implementation services as well as conducting executive recruitments 
for partner agencies. 
 
Richard has over twenty years of leadership experience in large public organizations. He is an 
expert in all facets of human resources, employee engagement, customer experience, and systems 
automation. He has provided consulting and coaching to business leaders in many aspects of HR 
including best practices, methodologies, tools, organizational design, legal compliance, talent 
management, and compensation. 
 
Richard has a bachelor’s degree and an M.B.A. in business administration. 
 
 
SERVICE COST/BILL RATES 
RGS provides services on an hourly basis. Work is performed as agreed, and subsequently billed 
each month based on hours actually worked.  RGS Advisors are skilled at prioritizing projects and 
working within the budget of partner agencies.   
 
Bill rates are as follows:  

Title Hourly Rate 

Chief Operating Officer  $140 to $230 

Deputy Chief Operating Officer  $135 to $205 

Senior/Lead Advisor  $130 to $200 

Advisor  $120 to $170 

35



 

 
PAGE 5 OF 5 GENER                                             GENERAL MANAGER EVALUATION PROPOSAL │ LGVSD 

 

Project Advisor  $110 to $130 

Project Coordinator $90 to $125 

Technical Specialist $80 to $120 
 

36



 

 
 

 

4/6/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 
Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 5A 
                                                                                 DATE: April 6, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

66



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\04062023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

4/6/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 5B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98


	Agenda 04062023
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board Meeting Minutes 03162023
	2B Draft Warrant List 04062023
	2C Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite
	2D Contract Award for Ferric Chloride
	2E Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite
	2F Reclamation Pasture Irrigation O&M 2023-24
	2G Murray WEF North Carolina May 2023
	2H Yezman CASA Virtual meeting Request
	3.1 General Manager Report
	3.2 General Manager  6 Month Evaluation Process RGS Proposal
	4 Board Member Reports
	4.3 Murray Other Reports
	5A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	5B Board Agenda Item Requests
	6 Varlous Articles



